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I. INTRODUCTION 

The Federal Trade Commission ("FTC'') asks this Court to immediately halt a tax relief 

scam that has 



Case: 1:10-cv-06123 Document #: 18  Filed: 09/24/10 Page 6 of 36 PageID #:112

example, has received more than 375 complaints against A TR, and state attorneys general also 

have received, and forwarded to ATR, many additional complaints.2 

ATR has persisted with its deceptive practices even after federal and state law 

enforcement actions challenged the practices. In April 2010, federal agents executed a criminal 

search warrant on ATR's business premises in Beverly Hills, California, based on allegations of 

fraud. Despite the execution of the criminal search warrant, ATR continues with the same 

scheme to deceive consumers who are desperate to reduce their tax debts. In 2006, moreover, 

the New York City Department of Consumer Affairs sued ATR for misrepresentation and 

deception. After settling those claims for $100,000, ATR was not the least bit deterred. 

Along with this Memorandum, the Commission has submitted extensive evidence 

establishing ATR's scheme to defraud consumers out of thousands of dollars under the guise of 

helping them reduce their tax debts. lbis evidence includes: declarations from three former 

employees which establish that A TR took money from consumers who clearly did not qualify for 

the tax relief programs they were promised; evidence from six undercover calls by govermnent 

investigators that capture the false promises made to consumers; declarations from seventeen 

consumers victimized by A TR; and internal ATR documents that shed light on the pervasive 

nature of ATR's fraud. In addition, the FTC has submitted an expert declaration that explains 

the stringent requirements that must be met to qualify for the IRS's tax relief programs and the 

fact that very few people actually qualify. In total, this evidence shows that A TR has for many 

years been violating the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 45, which 

prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices. 

2 PX 10, Almond Dec. �~� 9; PX 1, Menjivar Dec. �~� 6Oy. 

2 
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The FTC asks that this Court issue an ex parte temporary restraining order ("1RO'') to 

bring an immediate halt to Defendants' ongoing illegal practices. The FTC further requests that 

the 1RO include a freeze of Defendants' and Relief Defendants' assets and the appointment of a 

receiver over the corporate defendant to preserve assets for eventual restitution to Defendants' 
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case. As explained in the declaration of our tax expert, the IRS's Offer in Compromise and 

penalty and interest abatement programs are available only in very limited circumstances, where 

strict requirements are met. 6 

A. Offers in Compromise 

ATR routinely tells consumers that the company can negotiate favorable tax settlements 

through what is called an Offer in Compromise ("OIC'V The OIC program is the IRS's 

primary program allowing taxpayers to settle their tax debts for less than the full amount. Under 

this program, the IRS may agree to accept less than the full amount of taxes owed if the 

consumer is able to meet the specific criteria established by the IRS.8 

In contrast to what A TR represents to potential customers, it is extremely difficult to 

meet the strict standards required for an OIC.
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will not be able to collect the full amount of the taxes owed.IO In order to show Doubt as to 

Collectibility, taxpayers must convince the IRS that they would be unable to pay off the total tax 

debt during the remainder of the ten-year statutory collection period, even by liquidating assets 

or making installment payments. 11 The IRS generally only accepts mcs if taxpayers agree to 

tum over nearly all of their current assets, and several years' worth of future income. Thus, 

although a taxpayer is not paying the full amount of the tax debt, the IRS receives almost 

everything the taxpayer has to offer. In the end, mcs typically are accepted only for those 

cousumers who essentially have no current or future ability to pay.12 And the vast majority of 

A TR's customers simply do not qualify for the mcs that A TR promises. 13 

B. Penalty and Interest Abatements 

ATR also regularly tells cousumers that they qualify for ahatements which, Plll'pOrtedly, 

will reduce their penalties and interest, and siguificantly reduce cousumers' tax debts overall.14 

Penalties and interest can quickly accumulate on tax debt. Penalties can be assessed each month 

until they reach up to 50% of the taxes owed, and interest is compounded daily, until the tax debt 

10 PX 6, Dellinger Dec. �~� 16, 27. There are two other bases for seeking an Ole, Doubt as to 
Liability and Effective Tax Administration ("ETA"). Both are less frequently used, and A TR also rarely 
relies on them. Doubt 

for 
Li1duc5 T.r72.4 1c 151 Tc 3.499 0 c 9.9206 0 0 11.5 477e 
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remove interest if the taxpayer can show that the interest was accrued due to an IRS error.22 
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additional money from consumers' bank accounts or places additional charges on their credit 

cards without authorization, contributing to consumers' losses.28 When ATR's clients 
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$3 million in tax debt, but with ATR's help only had to pay the IRS $3,000.41 Consumers are 

directed to call the company's toll-free number for a "free consultation.''''2 

B. The Sales Pitch 

When consumers call A TR., they speak with sales representatives who 



Case: 1:10-cv-06123 Document #: 18  Filed: 09/24/10 Page 15 of 36 PageID #:121

When the A1R representatives come back on the line, they congratulate the consumers, 

telling them that the consumers "qualifY' either for an OlC or penalty abatement per IRS 

guidelines46 For those consumers who supposedly "qualifY' for OlCs, A 1R represents that, with 

A1R's help, obtaining an OlC is relatively easy, and it will save consumers a significant amount 

of money while leaving them with both money and assets.47 Consumers who "qualify" for 

penalty abatements are told that such relief will remove both the peualties and interest assessed 

on the tax debt.48 Regardless of which program the consumers supposedly "qualifY' for, A 1R 

representatives tell them that the arrangement will allow the consumers to siguificantiy reduce 

their tax debts.49 Indeed, A1R uses the same script to congratulate consumers who purportedly 

qualifY for either form of relief: 

Ok, good news! Based on the information you've provided me, you qualifY for a 
Settlement (or Penalty Abatement). I will arrange a settlement with the IRS for you 
between $$ and $$ (I will petition to knock off 100% of the penalties and interest you 
qualifY for).50 

46 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. mr 21-42 (four undercover calls: qualified for orCs and penalty 
abatement); PX 2, McKenney Dec. mr 10,20 (two undercover calIs: qualified for orc and penalty); PX 3, 
Search Wanant Aff. 'lJ 20e, f(random sampling of30 clients who had not complained to any agencies 
confirmed that consumers were told they qualified for orCs); PX 7, Barton Dec. 'lJ 11; PX 8, Byrd Dec. 'lJ 
20; PX 9, Garcia Dec. mr 15,24 (80% of clients promim27B50349 Tc 2c 12.103 0 0 11.4 236.76 292.32  Tm41orCs); n3336.1 1553 0 92.32 Tm
(PX )Tj
-0.7-0r 905.50Tc 1.858 0 Td
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-0.027TdJ04.57 Tm
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A former A TR employee states that she could not recall a single consumer ever being told 
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Consumers are not told anything about ATR's refund policy and, if asked, the 

representatives say that A TR would not take a case it could not settle, and if a settlement offer is 

rejected, A TR will continue working on the case and file appeals with the IRS free of charge.63 

C. The Purported "Tax Relief Services" 

Having signed consumers up and taken their money, A TR then provides consumers next 

to nothing in the way of "tax relief services." As explained above, A TR induces consumers to 

purchase its services by promising that they "qualify" for specific programs that will 

significantly reduce their tax debts. But for most consumers, ATR does not even submit 

applications to the IRS for these programs becanse they know that the consumers would never 

ualify 64 q . 

After consumers agree to hire A TR, the first thing ATR does is to fax them two IRS 

forms - a power of at 0 12.3 289.431 48 Tc 0..j
-0.0188 TcT1_2 1 Tf
0.36 12.2425
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settle 
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There is also a 
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progress, claiming that consumers did not provide, or did not provide in a timely way, all of the 

paperwork, information, or 
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cash, plus several years' worth offuture income.84 The reality is, however, that the majority of 

ATR.'s clients simply do not meet the requirements for an OIC,85 and would not have hired ATR. 

if they knew that have 
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unless customers take the additional step of involving law enforcement or the BBB.91 Even then, 

it typically only provides partial refunds, at most.92 

ATR's 
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required before A TR will continue working on their files.98 When consumers refuse to pay these 

additional charges, ATR charges them anyway.99 

Consumers' requests for refunds of ATR's charges are genernlly denied. loo As described 

above, ATR typically blames its failure to get results on consumers. ATR also sometimes cites 

to its five-day partial refund policy, which is often only conveyed to consumers in a letter that 

consumers receive after the refund period has already expired. lOl In rare instances, ATR 

provides partial refunds, but only to the most zealous consumers who file complaints with law 

enforcement agencies or the BBB, or who file their own lawsuits against A m.102 

IV. DEFENDANTS 

The parties responsible for this fraud are A TR and its two owners and principals, Alex 

Hahn and Joo Park, who are married. Park's parents, Young Soon Park and n Kon Park are 

98 In these cases, A TR often claims that additional money is necessary because the case required 
more work the Aonsumersfoale  102 t h e  KfullK e x t n t  KofKis Ko fhrsKtaxKliabiliies .KPXK1,
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Defendants Hahn and Park are the owners and principals of ATR. Hahn is in charge of 

the daily operations of the company,110 and he has identified himself as the "owner" and 

"manager" of ATR in various documents.11I He also registered ATR's website, is the point 

person for ATR's credit card processing, arranges for advertising on behalf of ATR, and even 

speaks with ATR's clients and prospective clients on occasion.1I2 Hahn has a long history of 

consumer fraud. In addition to operating A TR, he was convicted in 2006 of mail fraud in 

connection with a business that sold medical billing opportunities through fraudulent 

telemarketing. Hahn was sentenced to five years probation and ordered to pay restitution of 

$1,283,568 to the victims, which he paid with a check drawn on ATR's business acconnt.113 

Defendant Park is the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO',) of ATRII4 and in that position is 

heavily involved in the financial and corporate affairs of the company. liS Among other things, 

she is a signatory on ATR's bank accounts and signs checks drawn on its accounts, entered into 

an agreement with the IRS on behalf of ATR, and is listed as the "employer" on A TR 

employees' W-2 formsY6 

110 PX 7, Barton Dec. mr 4,16-17,21; PX 8, Byrd Dec. 'lJ10; PX 9, Garcia Dec. 'IJ 9. 

111 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. mr 60j, 60k, 601. 60n, 60v, Atts. PPP-RRR, AAAA, BBBB. 

112 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. mr 16, 6Om, 6Ov, Atts. 0, SSS, BBBB; PX 7, Barton Dec. 'IJ 16. 

113 PX 3, Search Warrant Aff. 'IJ 9; PX 11, Indictment; PX 12, Plea Agreement; PX 13, Judgment 
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The Relief Defendants, Young Soon Park and n Kon Park, are Park's parents and also 

reside in California 117 These two have received millions of dollars in funds and assets 
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1. The FTC Has Demonstrated There is a Strong Likelihood That 
Defendants Have Violated the FTC Act 

There is no doubt that Defendants' activities qualify as deceptive acts or pmctices under 

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). An act or pmctice is deceptive ifit involves a 

material misrepresentation or omission that is likely to mislead consumers acting reasonably 

under the circumstances. FTC v. Bay Area Bus. Council, 423 F.3d 627, 635 (7th Cir. 2005); 

FTC v. World Media Brokers, 415 F.3d 758, 763 (7th Cir. 2005); World Travel, 861 F.2d at 

1029. The materiality requirement is satisfied if the misrepresentation or omission involves 

information that is likely to affect a consumer's choice of, or conduct regarding, a product or 

service. Krqft, Inc. v. FTC, 970 F.2d 311, 322 (7th Cir. 1992), cert. denied, 507 U.S. 909 (1993). 

In deciding whether particular statements are deceptive, courts must look to the "ovem11 net 

impression" of consumers. See id. 

Here, Defendants have violated the FTC Act by consistently making a series of false 

claims about their tax relief services. Defendants regularly represent that consumers qualify for 

specific tax reliefprograrns and that, with Defendants' help, the consumers will be able to reduce 

their total tax debts significantly. Defendants further misrepresent that they have already helped 

thousands of other consumers significantly reduce their tax debts. The Commission's sworn 

consumer declamtions demonstmte that these lies often succeed in inducing consumers to pay 

thousands of dollars for Defendants' tax relief services when they otherwise would not have. 

The misrepresentations are clearly material, in that they are likely to and do affect consumers' 

conduct. 

Defendants also routoTj
0.012 Tc 3521 Tc 305Cd
(that3 -2.225 Td 0 Td
(they )Tj
251.65 Tm65255 )Tj
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0.05 Tc88 0 Tj
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-0.0156 T9Tj
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"unfair" and also violate Section 5. Under Section 5(n) of the FTC Act, an act or practice is 

unfair if it causes or is likely to cause substantial injury to consumers that is not reasonably 

avoidable by consumers and is not outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or to 

competition. See 15 U.S.C. § 45(n); see also Orkin Exterminating Co., Inc. v. FTC, 849 F.2d 

1354, 1363-66 (11th Cir. 1988). Courts have consistently held unauthorized charges to be unfair 

under the FTC Act. See, e.g., FTC v. Global Mktg. Group, Inc., 594 F. Supp.2d 1281, 1288-89 

(M.D. Fla. 2008); FTCv. J.K Publications, Inc., 99 F. Supp. 2d 1176, 1201 (C.D. Cal. 2000). 

Defendants' business practices clearly violate the FTC Act. Defendants make a series of 

blatantly false statements to induce consumers to purchase their tax relief services. Once they 

have consumers' money, they often do nothing at all to try to reduce consumers' tax debts. 

Defendants' former employees acknowledge that in all but a very few cases, A TR simply could 

not provide the substantial tax savings that it promised. Defendants have been repeatedly 

notified that their business practices are not lawful, but they continue misrepresenting their 

ability to reduce consumers' tax debts and placing unauthorized charges on consumers' 

accounts. Accordingly, a temporary restraining order to stop these practices is warranted. 

2. Alex Hahn and Joo Park are PersonaUy Liable 

An individual defendant may be held liable for injunctive relief and monetary restitution 

under the FTC Act if the Court finds (I) that he participated directly in or had some measure of 

control over a corporation's deceptive practices, and (2) that he had actual or constructive 

knowledge of the practices. World Media Brokers, 415 F.3d aj
0.02347ij
0.0399 Tc .2reduce 

(2) c 3 r e d u c e  
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satisfied by a showing that the defendant (1) had actual knowledge of the deceptive acts or 

practices, (2) was recklessly indifferent to the truth or falsity of the representations, or (3) had an 

awareness of a high probability of fraud coupled with an intentional avoidance of the truth. Id; 

Bay Area, 423 F.3d at 636; Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 573. An individual's "degree of 

participation in business affairs is probative of knowledge." Id. The Commission need not 

prove subjective intent to defraud. Id Here, there is ample evidence that the Commission is 

likely to meet the standard for establishing Hahn's and Park's individual liability. 

Halm clearly both controls A TR and is aware of the company's practices. He has 

identified himself as the "owner" or ''manager'' of A TR on ATR's bank account information 

forms and in other documents. l25 Moreover, three former A TR employees state that Halm 

oversees and controls the daily operations at ATR and is present at the company's offices most 

of the time.126 Hahn has even handled calls with prospective A TR clients.127 He is also the point 

person in dealing with the BBB regarding consumer complaints.128 

Park also has control over ATR. She is a signatory on the company's bank accounts, and 

her signature appears on most of the checks drawn on those accountS.129 She is also listed as the 

registered agent of A TR on its corporate papers, the "employer" on the employees' W -2 forms, 

125 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. ~ 60j, 60k, 601, 60u, 6Ov, Atts. PPP-RRR, AAAA, BBBB. 

126 PX 7, Barton Dec. ~ 4, 16-17, 21; PX 8, Byrd Dec. ~ 10; PX 9, Garcia Dec. ~ 8-1 1. 

127 PX 7, Barton Dec. ~ 16. 

128 PX 10, Almond Dec. ~ 17-19, 21-22, 25-26 

129 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. ~ 44a, 44b, 601, Atts. II, II,JJ 10.6 403.i0c 289.06 152.29 Tm
(Atts. )Tj
-0.6i D.n07E0020>Tj
80.08 456.49 22Y9
(At3BB. )Tj
-0.0143 Tc 71.5  Tc 10.8847 0 0 1061 15456.49 22Y9
Fo_0 1 Tf
0 T.05 Tc .571 441 

Tj
-0.03322Y9
FTC5 269.88 459.63 152.29 T5Tj
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has, 
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and the CEO in a Dun and Bradstreet report on A lR.130 Park also knew, or at least should have 

known, of AlR's deceptive practices. According to one fonner employee, she comes into the 

office on occasion.131 As the registered agent for the corpomtion, she presumably receives notice 

of lawsuits filed against the company. Additionally, she has signed legal settlements with AlR 

clients who sued the company for breach of contract and fraud, has paid judgment creditors in 

lawsuits, and has been named personally in some of the lawsuits filed against A TR.132 

Therefore, Park meets the standard for individually liability. 

3. The Equities Tip Decidedly in the Commission's Favor 

Once the Commission has shown a likelihood of success on the merits, the Court must 

balance the equities, assigning "far greater weight" to the public interest than to any of 

defendants' private concerns. World Travel, 861 F.2d at 1029. The public equities in this case in O we9ins, 
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C. The Court Should Enter the FfC's Proposed Ex Parte TRO 

Ex parte relief is necessary here. An ex parte TRO is warranted where facts show that 

irreparable injury, loss, or damage may result before defendants may be heard in opposition. See 

Fed. R.. Civ. P. 65(b). In executing the April 2010 search warrant, the criminal authorities seized 

some of ATR's documents and some, but not all, ofits bank: accounts and other assetS.133 

Despite that, A TR has continued to operate and to engage in the same deceptive practices. It 

thus has continued to generate additional records and assets that should be preserved. If 

Defendants receive prior notice of the FTC's action, there is a tangible risk that these materials 

and assets will disappear. These Defendants have routinely transferred assets to third parties, 

namely Park's parents, and registered assets in their names, presumably in an attempt to hide 

them. To date, Defendants have transferred, at the very least, over $15.5 million in funds and 

assets to the ReliefDefendants. l34 It is reasonable to believe that, if Defendants receive advance 

warning of this matter, they will dissipate funds even further, both in the U.S. and overseas, 

before those assets can be frozen by the Court. Additionally, ex parte relief will help preserve 

evidence. Defendants have taken steps to hide their business activities from government agents 

in the past, 135 and likely would do so here too if given the chance. In addition, Defendants' own 

records indicate that some client files already have been destroyed.l36 In sum, ex parte relief is 

133 The criminal authorities also made lis pendens filings against some of Defendants' real 
properties. PX Meqjivar Dec. 'IJ 58. 

134 PX 4, Seizure Warrant Aft: 'IJ'IJ 8,11-15; see also PX 1, Menjivar Dec. 'IJ 60g, Att.; PX 3, 
Search Warrant Aff. 'IJ 18; PX 5, Seizure Warrant Aft: 'IJ 8. 

135 During a government audit in 2009, Hahn tried to conceal the existence of A TR's sales 
deparbnent from the auditors by blocking an adjoining door and covering up the suite number. PX 7, 
Barton Dec. 'IJ 19. 

136 PX 1, Menjivar Dec. 'IJ 60bb, Atl JJJJ. 

30 



Case: 1:10-cv-06123 Document #: 18  Filed: 09/24/10 Page 35 of 36 PageID #:141

necessary to preserve the status quo and ensure the Defendants cannot hide or destroy records 

and dissipate assets, both of which they have done in the past. 

Part of the relief sought by the FTC in this case is restitution for consumers who were 

defrauded by Defendants' misrepresentations. To preserve the possibility for such relief, the 

Commission seeks a freeze of Defendants' and Relief Defendants' assets and an immediate 

accounting to prevent concealment or dissipation of assets pending a fina1 resolution of this 

litigation. Given the many millions of dollars that have already been fraudulently transferred to 

the Relief Defendants, an asset freeze against them is warranted. 

An asset freeze is appropriate once the Court determines that the Commission is likely to 

prevail on the merits and that restitution would be an appropriate fina1 remedy. See World 

Travel, 861 F.2d at 1031 & n.9. In the words of the Seventh Circuit, the district 
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continue to defraud consumers and that evidence will be destroyed and the fruits of their fraud 

will be dissipated. By taking custody of the business, a neutral receiver would prevent further 

harm to consumers and prevent destruction or concealment of assets and records without 

disrupting any legitimate business activity. At the same time, a temporary receiver would be 

helpful to the court in assessing the extent of Defendants' fraud, tracing the proceeds of that 

fraud, preparing an accounting, and making an independent report of Defendants' activities to 

the Court. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

Defendants have caused, and are likely to continue to cause, substantial injury to the 

public through their violations of the FTC Act The Commission respectfully requests that the 

Court issue the proposed TRO to protect the public from further harm and to help ensure the 

possibility of effective final relief for defrauded consumers. 137 

Dated: September 24,2010 Respectfully Submitted, 

WILLARD K. TOM 
General Counsel 

\~~'~h=-

137 The FTC has submitted a proposed Ex Parte Temporary Restraining Order with its papers. 
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